
 

 

 
NOTICE OF VIRTUAL ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 31ST Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Ltd. 
will be held VIRTUALLY on the ZOOM Platform on 15th JUNE 2021 to transact business of Annual 
General Meeting. Time 10:00am 

AGENDA: 

1. To read the notice convening the meeting 
2. To confirm the minutes of the 30th Annual General Meeting 
3. To consider the report of the Chairman of the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st December 

2020 
4. To consider and adopt the Financial Statements and Annual Reports of the Bank for the year ended 

31st December 2020; together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon 
5. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors 
6. To fix the remuneration of Directors 
7. To elect Directors in place of those retiring by rotation  
8. To appoint a new External Auditor    

NOTICE OF ELECTION 
Under applicable Company Laws, Mr. George Mensah (Kokofu Zone) and Mr. Fred Asafu - Adjaye 
(Kuntanase South Zone) retire by rotation. 
They are however eligible for re-election and have expressed their willingness to seek re-election. 
 

Shareholders are hereby informed that, they are at liberty to propose any person of their choice to contest the 
election to the office of Directors of the Bank. 
 

Nominee(s) shall be a public spirited person(s) who can have time for the Bank’s activities. Such 
nominations should be deposited at the Office of the Chief Executive Officer, Kuntanase on or before close 
of business on Friday 28th May 2021. 
 

In accordance with the Company’s regulations, Procedures for the Appointment of Directors are as follows: 
1. Applicant must be a member of the Bank 
2. A member who is a natural person must be a Shareholder for not less than three (3) years. 
3. An applicant for Directorship position must own a minimum of Twenty Thousand (20,000) shares. 
4. An applicant must personally declare his/her intention to be a Director in writing as well as being 

proposed and seconded by Shareholders who hold minimum shares of Two Thousand (2,000) and 
One Thousand (1,000) respectively for  not less than two years. 

5. An applicant vying for the position of a Director must hold an HND or a recognized University 
Diploma as his/her minimum academic qualification or its equivalent professional qualification. 



 
 
NOTES:  

1. In compliance with the current restrictions on public gatherings in force pursuant to the imposition of 
Restrictions Act, 2020 (Act 1012) and consequent Regulatory Directives, attendance and participation 
by all members and/or their proxies in this year’s Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be 
strictly virtual (i.e. by online participation).  

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend 

(via online participation) and vote on his/her behalf. Such a proxy need not be a member of the 
Company.  

 
3. The appointment of a proxy will not prevent a member from subsequently attending and voting at the 

meeting (via online participation). Where a member attends the meeting in person (participates on 
line), the proxy appointment shall be deemed to be revoked.  

 
4. A copy of the Form of Proxy can be downloaded from the Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited website 
https://www.bosomtwweruralbankgh.com and may be filled and sent via email to 
bosomtwerb@yahoo.com or deposited at the registered office - Bosomtwe House, Kuntanase no later 
than 48 hours before the appointed time for the meeting.  

 
ACCESSING AND VOTING AT THE VIRTUAL AGM  

1. The Meeting ID and Password will be sent to shareholders by SMS from 8th June 2021 to give them 
access to the meeting. Shareholders who do not receive the Meeting ID and Password can contact the 
Company Secretary at Bosomtwe House - Kuntanase or on telephone number 0322098076 or by 
email to bosomtwerb@yahoo.com at any time after 8th June 2021 but before the date of the AGM to 
be sent the Meeting ID and Password. 

 
2. To gain access to the Virtual Voting at the Annual General Meeting, shareholders must visit the 

Google play store on android devices only to download and install My Shares App on the Ebits 
Platform from 8th June 2021 and input their unique shares identification number sent to them by the 
Bank.  

 
3. Further assistance on accessing the meeting and voting electronically would be sent to Shareholders 

via SMS and can also be found on the Bank’s website, bosomtweruralbankgh.com  
 
 
 
Dated: 3rd May 2021. 
          

     Signed 
GIDEON AGYEI-MENSAH 
(COMPANY SECRETARY) 
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MINUTES OF 30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS HELD 
VIRTUALLY (Zoom Platform) ON 13TH OCTOBER, 2020 

1.0 Opening 
The Director representing the Jachie Zone, Ms. Doris Otoo prayed for the meeting to commence 
at 10:20am. The meeting was held virtually via the Zoom Platform. 

The Master of Ceremony for the occasion, Mr.  Francis Agyei Bekoe, the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the Bank, introduced P. E. K. Antwi, Esq as the Chairman for the programme. 
He went on to introduce members of the Board of Directors of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited as 
well as the Company Secretary. 

Mr. Gideon Agyei Mensah, the Company Secretary of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited read the 
notice convening the 30th Virtual Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank. The 
notice aimed at: 

• confirming the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting,  
• considering the Financial Reports,  
• adopting the Financial Statements for 31st December, 2019  
• Electing directors to replace those retiring from office. 

 
1.1 Reading and Correction of Minutes of the 29th Annual General Meeting 
The minutes of the previous meeting was read by the Company Secretary to all members who 
had joined the online feed for corrections and additions to be effected. 
The following corrections were proposed by Mr. Fred Asafu - Adjaye and accepted by the 
members; 

• (Chapter 7.1 Representative from Association of Rural Banks) was corrected as Mr. 
Patrick Owusu, Association of Rural Banks, Ashanti Chapter President 

• (Chapter 7.2 Mr. J.K Owusu, National President, ARB) was corrected as Mr. D.O.K 
Owusu, National President ARB. 

• The following statement was added to Chapter 7.5 (Address by Kokofumanhene) - He 
pleaded with the Bank and the Kuntanasemanhene to also support security in the district 
by creating watchdogs in the communities to assist in combating armed robbery as well 
as build a Police Post along the road from Kuntanase to Kokofu. 

 
1.2 Corrections by Mr. Steve Brathwaite 
The meeting received a letter from Mr. Steve Brathwaite, a shareholder proposing some 
corrections to be effected in the minutes as per what he observed and noted at the previous 
meeting; 



2 | P a g e  
 

The proposed corrections were considered by members at the meeting and found not to be a true 
reflection and account of events at the previous meeting. Mr. Steve Brathwaite was not present at 
the meeting to provide further explanation on his proposed corrections. As a result, Mr. Prince 
Abedu moved a motion to disregard the letter and was seconded by Mr. Eric Opoku.  
Thus the proposed corrections by Mr. Steve Brathwaite were disregarded. 
The Vice Chairman of the Board, Benjamin Osei – Boateng (Esq.) explained that, the 
conventional ways of effecting corrections at a meeting is not by a letter but by being present at 
the meeting so as to offer further explanation on the proposed corrections. However, if the 
member cannot attend, a proxy can be appointed to attend and effect the corrections on behalf of 
the member. In the light of the foregoing, the letter from Mr. Steve Brathwaite could have been 
neglected outright but for the intervention of members present. 
 
2.0 Chairman’s Report  
The Chairman, Philip Edward Kwabena Antwi (Esq.), welcomed all the shareholders, proxies, 
and special invited guests to the 30th Virtual Annual General Meeting of Bosomtwe Rural Bank 
Limited. 

It was his pleasure and that of the Board of Directors and Management to report to shareholders, 
the Bank’s performance for the year ended 31st December, 2019 in accordance with the 
requirement of the Companies Act 2019 (Act 992) 

The Chairman gave an overview of the performance of the Bank in a very challenging macro-
economic environment for business in 2019 as pertaining globally. He iterated that, The 
macroeconomic indicators of our economy improved in the 2019 with exception of the cedi 
which consistently depreciated against all the major trading currencies and this did not in fact 
favour businesses as expected. Inflation rate as at the close of business 31st December, 2019 was 
7.2% as against 9.8% in the year 2018 with Government of Ghana Treasury Bill rate of 14.69% 
in 2019 as against 14% in 2018. 
 
2.1 Financial Performance 
The Bank, irrespective of the surmounting challenges coupled with current prevailing stiff 
competition in the Banking Industry and other vitiating factors, performed creditably during the 
period under review except profit which declined. The reduction in profit is due to financial 
meltdown, closure of some banks as well as some investment companies leading to reduction in 
investment income during the year 2019.  
The Chairman gave a comparative analysis of the Bank’s financial record for the 2019 and 2018 
financial years as depicted below: 

Year 2019(GHS) 2018(GHS) Change (%) 
Deposit 76,683,117.00 63,761,290.00 20.27% 
Investment 44,773,857.00 37,723,303.00 18.69% 
Loans Advances 25,687,944.00 23,127,529.00 11% 
Total Assets 88,669,879.00 76,187,671.00 16.38% 
Stated Capital 3,845,169.00 3,632,050.00 5.86% 
Profit Before Tax 396,970.00 1,834,018.00 (78.%) 
Profit After Tax 156,996.00 1,308,881.00 (88%) 
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2.2 Share Capital 
The Chairman expressed his appreciation to shareholders for their contribution to the increase 
in the Bank’s paid up capital by 5.86% from GH¢3,632,050 as at 31st December, 2018 to 
approximately GH¢3,845,169 as at the close of business on 31st December, 2019. The amount 
far exceeds Bank of Ghana’s minimum threshold for Rural and Community Banks. 
On behalf of the Board and Management of the Bank, he commended the shareholders of the 
Bank for their immense contribution in growing the capital base of the bank. 

2.3 Deposits 
Deposits increased by 20.27% from GH¢63,761,290 in 2018 to GH¢ 76,683,117 in 2019.   
The continued support and confidence reposed in the Bank by our distinguished customers and 
the hard work of our staff in deposits mobilization and inculcating effectively the culture of 
saving in our people were greatly appreciated.                                                                                                                                            
He emphasized that, the Board was determined to continue to formulate strategic policies and 
plans which will improve upon our deposit base whilst mitigating any corresponding risks. 
 
2.4 Loans and Advances 
The Chairman mentioned that, during the year under review, the Bank’s Loans and Advances 
Portfolio also grew by 11% from GH¢23,127,529 in 2018 to GH¢25,687,944 in 2019. 
This marginal growth is attributable to the Board and Management decision to mitigate possible 
credit risk in the midst of financial sector turbulence.  
In addition, despite stiff competition from other Microfinance Institutions, the Board and 
Management are putting in place measures to strengthen the credit administration of our noble 
bank in order to grow the credit portfolio. 
The Bank was also able to review some of its lending rates on traditional loan products to make 
them relatively flexible to the delight of our customers.  
 
2.5 Corporate Social Responsibility 
Regarding corporate social responsibility, the Chairman disclosed to members that, in pursuance 
of the Bank’s vision to promote community development in its catchment area, the Bank 
extended support to communities, institutions and projects in its catchment areas amounting to 
GHS45,000.00 during the year under review. 
The sectors that received the support are provided below: 
SECTOR GHS 
Farmers Days Donations 30,000.00 
Donations to Education 
Institutions 

10,000.00 

Security Services 5,000.00 
Total 45,000.00 

The chairman informed members that, it was the hope of the Bank to support communities in the 
Bank’s catchment areas in terms of development in the coming years. 

2.6 Dividend 

Touching on Dividend, it was made known to members that, over the last few years we have 
taken strong measures to ‘Strengthen the Foundations’ of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited and the 
Board is confident that our strategies, and the actions that we have adopted so far, have 
positioned the company for doubtless sustainable future growth. 
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The Board recognizes the importance of dividends payouts to our shareholders, however, the 
Board is unable to recommend payment of dividends this year as it has become duty-bound to 
uphold prudential guidelines and strict directives on dividend distribution to shareholders from 
the Bank of Ghana, implementation of International Financial Accounting Standards (IFRS) 
coupled with the financial sector meltdown in the year 2018 resulting in locked-up funds and the 
need to build the bank’s liquidity buffers. 

2.7 Head Office Building Project & Magazine Branch Expansion Works 
The Chairman informed members that, the Bank’s Head Office has inadequate offices to 
accommodate some Heads of Departments and Unit Heads of the Bank and this unpleasant 
situation has been hampering productivity. 
In view of this the Board as a matter of urgency has resolved to put up six permanent office 
complexes to make up the shortage.  
We have obtained architectural designs, drawings, bills of quantities and building permit. The 
project will commence as soon as the Bank of Ghana approval is received and funding from 
ARB Apex Bank Limited is secured. 
In a related development, members were informed that, the Board has planned to embark on 
expansion works to increase the office space at the Magazine Branch owing to tremendous 
growth recorded so far. 
 
2.8 Investment 
Investment increased by 18.69% from GH¢37,723,303 in 2018 to GH¢44,773,857 in 2019. 
The investment represents placements with other Investment Houses, Discount Houses and 
Government Treasury bills. 
 
2.9 Directors’ Remuneration. 
The Chairman reported that, the Bank recorded an unsatisfactory performance with pretax profit 
of GH¢396,970.00 for the year under review, a huge drop as against the previous year by 78%. 
This drop coupled with the financial sector turbulence resulting in the decline in investment 
income from locked up funds and the quest of the Directors to control operating costs; it makes it 
prudent to advise members not to review the Directors’ sitting allowances upward this year. 
 

2.10 Retiring Directors 
Under the companies Act, 2019(Act 992), two (2) Directors, namely Mr. P E K Antwi (Esq.) and 
Prof. Joe Oteng Adjei (Hon.), representing Kuntanase North and Atonsu North Zones 
respectively, were to retire from office at the meeting.  They were commended for their 
commitment and forward-looking leadership skills. The Board of Directors supported their bid 
for re-election to maintain the momentum of the Bank’s growth. 
2.11 Deposit Insurance 
The Chairman made it known to members how paramount the interest of depositors has become 
and in the quest of ensuring that customers funds are secured, the Bank has signed on to Ghana 
Deposit Protection Scheme which was established by Ghana Deposit Protection Act 2018 (Act 
968). He mentioned that, the Scheme protects small depositors from loss incurred by the 
depositor as a result of the occurrence of an insured event. He entreated all members to have 
confidence in the Bank and continue with their unflinching support to the Bank. 
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2.12 Acknowledgment and Conclusion 
In conclusion, the Chairman on behalf of the Board of Directors congratulated all stakeholders, 
including cherished shareholders, Nananom, Customers, Well-wishers, Patrons, the entire 
Management and staff of the Bank once again for their loyalty, commitment, patronage, support 
and contributions in diverse ways to the steady growth and progress of the Bank. He pledged 
that, the Board would continue to direct the Bank on sound Corporate Governance principles and 
behavior to achieve and realize the Bank’s determined potential.  

3.0 Directors’ Report 
The report of Directors of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited for the year ended 31st December, 
2019, was presented to members by Mr. Fred Asafu-Adjaye. According to the Directors, the 
principal activities carried by the Bank during the year under review were within the limits 
permitted by its Regulations and also consistent with its strategic focus. 

 It was confirmed in the report that, there were no changes in the principal activities of the Bank 
during the year. 

Summary of results of operations for the year ended 31st December, 2019 was presented as 
follows: 

       2019    2018 
Profit before tax   396,970 1,834,018 
Total Comprehensive Income  156,996 1,308,881 
Total Assets    88,669,879 76,187,671 
 
3.1 Dividend 
The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31st 
December, 2019. 

3.2 Capacity of Directors 
The Bank ensures that, only fit and proper persons are appointed to the Board after obtaining the 
necessary approval from the regulator, Bank of Ghana. Relevant training and capacity building 
programs facilitated by the Ghana Banking College and the Bank of Ghana, are put in place to 
enable the Directors discharge their duties. 

 
3.3 External Auditors 
The Directors report stated that, Auditor, John Allotey & Associates would continue in office in 
accordance with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179). 

3.4 Retiring Directors 
Mr. P E K Antwi (Esq.) and Prof. Joe Oteng Adjei (Hon.), representing Kuntanase North and 
Atonsu North Zones respectively, were due to retire from office by the close of the meeting. The 
two (2) Directors had sought for re-elections to continue to serve on the Board for their 
respective zones. 

3.5 Nature of Business 
The Bank is authorized by Bank of Ghana to carry on the business of rural banking. There was 
no change in the nature of business of the Bank during the year. 
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4.0 AUDITORS REPORT  
An Official of John Allotey and Associates presented the independent Audit Report on the 
operations of the Bank for the financial year ended 31st December, 2019. 

The External Auditors were satisfied with the Internal control systems and books of accounts put 
in place by the Board and Management, and expressed opinion that, the Bank’s financial 
statements for 2019 represented a true and fair view of the Bank’s financial position as at 31st 
December, 2019 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

According to the Auditors, the Bank kept proper books of accounts, transacted business within 
its powers and complied with regulatory requirements as obtained in the Companies Act, 2019 
(Act 992) and Banks’ and Specialized Deposit – Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930), Anti 
Money Laundering Act, 2008 (Act 749) as amended by Anti Money Laundering Amendment 
Act, 2014 (Act 874) and the Anti Terrorism Act, 2008 (Act 762).  

The Auditors further cleared the Bank’s Financial Statements as containing no material 
misstatements. The preparation of the Bank’s Financial Statements was the sole responsibility of 
the Directors, according to the Auditors Report. 

5.0 Acceptance of the Minutes and Reports 
Mr. Augustine Antwi of Boneso Zone, moved for the acceptance of the minutes and reports 
presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Abubakar Sidikou. 
 
6.0 Discussion of the Report 
6.1 Kofi Yesuo 
Mr. Kofi Yesuo from the Boneso Zone expressed his appreciation to the Chairman for ensuring 
that the Bank declared vacancy in the zones where Directors were retiring by rotation. He 
explained that, vacancy for Directorship is mostly shrouded in secrecy elsewhere but Bosomtwe 
Rural Bank Limited through decent leadership by the Board Chairman makes the process plain. 

He further expressed appreciation to the Board, Management and entire staff for the good works 
which continues to propel the Bank to higher heights hence his delight to be a Shareholder. 

He finally urged other Shareholders to advice Mr. Steve Brathwaite to withdraw his legal suit 
against the Bank and explore other means of resolving issues concerning the Bank other than 
resulting to Court all the time. 

6.2 Mr. J.E Sarkodie 
Mr. J.E Sarkodie from the Jachie Zone enquired about when the construction of the Jachie 
Branch building will commence. 
The Chairman responded that, the Jachie Branch project may commence after the proposed Head 
Office project and the Magazine Branch expansion subject to approval from Bank of Ghana. 
 
6.3 Mr. Abubakar Sidikou 
Mr. Abubakar Sidikou from the Trede Zone expressed concern about the inability of the Bank to 
pay dividends for two (2) consecutive years. He pleaded with the Board to discuss the payment 
of dividends in 2021. 
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The Board Chairman clarified that, barring the Bank’s poor performance in the years 2018 and 
2019 due to the financial sector crisis which could not support dividend payments, Bank of 
Ghana also issued directives for the suspension of dividend payments for 2019 and 2020. 
 
7.0 Authorizing Directors to Fix Remuneration of Auditors 
The motion authorizing the Directors to fix the fees of the External Auditors was tabled by Mr. 
Augustine Antwi from Boneso Zone. The motion was unanimously carried after it had been 
seconded by Mr. Abubakar Sidikou. 

8.0 Fixing Directors’ Remuneration 
As recommended by the Board Chairman in his address for the Directors’ allowances to be 
maintained as it was in the year under review, Mr. J.E Sarkodie moved the motion and was 
seconded by Mr. Prince Abedu. 

9.0 Election of Directors. 
 Mr. P E K Antwi (Esq.) and Prof. Joe Oteng Adjei (Hon.), representing Kuntanase North and 
Atonsu North Zones respectively, were due to retire and applied for re-elections. They were 
unanimously acclaimed unopposed as Directors for the respective zones as no other candidates 
contested for the Directorship positions after the expiration of the 21-day notice. 

10.0 Vote of Thanks 
Ms. Doris Antwi Boasiako, the Director representing the Boneso Zone expressed the Board’s 
appreciation for the impressive attendance and collaboration from members and Management 
members for ensuring the success of the virtual meeting.  

She further expressed the Board’s appreciation to all hardworking and dedicated staff for their 
superb commitment to the Bank.  

11.0 Closing 
The motion for the closure of the meeting was moved by Mr. George Mensah and was seconded 
by Samuel Bofah Donkoh (Esq.). Closing prayer was said by Prof. Joe Oteng – Adjei at 
12:56pm. 

 
 
 
 
    Signed             Signed 
P.E.K ANTWI      GIDEON AGYEI – MENSAH 
(CHAIRMAN)      (COMPANY SECRETARY) 
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THE YEAR AT A GLANCE
APPROX.

2020 2019 PERCENTAGE

Major Income Statement Items GH¢ GH¢ CHANGE

Gross Earnings 16,836,561 15,367,121 9.56%
Interest Expenses 3,052,265 2,521,717 21.04%
Overhead Expenses 13,133,885 12,173,226 7.89%
Loan-Loss Charge 300,719 275,208 9.27%
Profit before Taxation 349,692 396,970 -11.91%
Profit after taxation 257,337 156,996 63.91%

Major Balance Sheet Items

Total Assets 123,771,396 88,669,879 39.59%
Deposits from Customers 110,665,513 76,683,117 44.32%
Loans & Advances to customers 26,269,330 25,687,944 2.26%
Shareholder's Funds 8,102,351 7,998,239 1.30%

Per Share Data

Earnings Per Share 0.0064 0.0039 63.12%
Total Assets Per Share 3.0813 2.2182 38.91%
Ord. Shares Issued to date 40,168,392 39,973,512 0.49%
Dividend Per Share 0.0000 0.0000 0.00%
Net Assets Per Share 0.2017 0.2001 0.81%



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
The Directors in submitting to the Shareholders the financial statements of the Bank for the year
 ended 31 December 2020 report as follows: 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

The Bank’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited Financial Position at 31 December 
2020, and of the Profit or Loss and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the Notes to the 
Financial Statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the
 manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and the Banks and Specialised 
Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). In addition, the Directors are responsible for 
the preparation of this Directors' report. 

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective 
system of risk management. 

The Directors have made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
have no reason to believe the business will not be a going concern. 

Financial Results and Dividend 



The financial results of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the attached 
financial statements, highlights of which are as follows:

31-Dec 2020 2019
GH₵ GH₵

Profit before taxation is 349,692          396,970         
from which is deducted taxation of (92,355)           (239,974)        
giving profit after taxation for the year of 257,337          156,995         
less net transfer to statutory reserve fund and other reserves of (180,136)         (109,897)        
leaving a balance of 77,201            47,098           
to which is added a balance brought forward on retained earnings of 1,824,545       2,601,863      
less changes on initial application of IFRS 9 and other reserves of -                            -                 
add transfer from credit risk reserves 86,335            (125,347)        
less final dividend paid of (76,399)           (699,069)        
leaving a balance of 1,911,682       1,824,545      

In accordance with Section 34(1) (b) of the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 
2016 (Act 930), an amount of GH¢64,334 (2019: GH¢39,249) was transferred to the 
statutory reserve fund from profit for the year, bringing the cumulative balance on the statutory reserve 
fund to GH¢2,228,108 (2019:GH¢2,163,774 ) at the year end.

Dividend
The Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend payment based on Bank of Ghana directive
(NOTICE NO. BG/GOV/SEC/2021/06) dated 12th April,2021.

Nature of Business
The Bank is authorised by Bank of Ghana to carry on the business of rural banking. There was no 
change in the nature of business of the Bank during the year.

Capacity of Directors

The Bank ensures that only fit and proper persons are appointed to the Board after obtaining the necessary 
approval from the Regulator, Bank of Ghana. Relevant training and capacity building programs, facilitated by the 



Ghana Banking College and the Bank of Ghana, are put in place to enable the Directors discharge their duties. 

Auditor and Audit Fee
The Auditor, John Allotey & Associates, will continue in office in accordance with Section 139 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and Section 81 of the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 
2016 (Act 930). Audit Fee for the year ended 31 December 2020 is disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statementS.

Retiring Directors
The following Directors are due to retire by rotation:

Mr. Fred Asafu - Adjaye
Mr. George Mensah

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Bank were approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd April 2021 and were
 signed on their behalf by:

Signed Signed
……………………………………………… ……………………………………………………
P.E.K Antwi, ESQ Benjamin Osei-Boateng
(Chairman) (Vice Chairman)



 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF BOSOMTWE RURAL BANK LIMITED 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of 
Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited, which comprise 
the statements of financial position as at 31 
December 2020 and the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows for the year the ended and notes to the 
financial statements which include a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, as set out on pages 13 to 
42. 

In our opinion, these financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of 
Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited as at 31 
December 2020, and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner 
required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), 
and the Banks and Specialised Deposit–Taking 
Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report.  

We are independent of the Bank in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements in Ghana and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For the matter below, we have provided 
our description of how our audit addressed the 
matter as provided in that context. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Key audit matter 

Impairment of financial assets  

At 31 December 2020, the Bank’s financial assets and respective 
impairment, where applicable, were as follows:  
 

Financial assets 
measured at 
amortised cost 

       Amounts 
outstanding 

            
Impairment 

                    GH₵                  GH₵ 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

             12,070,724                      - 

Investment 
securities 

             76,325,908                      - 

Investment other 
than securities 

                   41,404                      - 

Loans & 
advances to 
customers 

               
            26,269,330 
 
 

                                         
1,738,477       

  
The impairment of these financial assets were determined on 
an expected credit loss basis under IFRS 9. IFRS 9 is a complex 
accounting standard which requires considerable judgement 
and  
interpretation in its implementation. These judgements were key in 
the development of the new models which have been built and 
implemented to measure the expected credit losses on relevant  
financial assets measured at amortised cost.  
 
The increase in the data inputs required by the IFRS 9 models 
increases the risk of completeness and accuracy of the data that 
has been used to create assumptions and operate the models. In 
some cases, data is unavailable and reasonable alternatives 
have been applied to allow calculations to be performed.  
 
Expected credit losses (ECLs) are required to incorporate 
forward-looking information, reflecting management’s view of 
potential future economic environment. The complexity 
involved requires management to develop new methodologies 
involving the use of significant judgements.  
  
 
  
 

 
 
How the matter was 
addressed in our audit. 

We obtained an 
understanding of and 
evaluated controls 
supporting management’s 
estimates, judgements and 
assumptions and tested 
selected key controls 
focusing on the 
completeness and accuracy 
of data used as input to the 
models including the 
transfer of data between 
source systems and the 
impairment models;  
 
We examined a sample of 
loans and advances which 
had not been identified by 
management as impaired or 
for which there was no 
significant increase in 
credit risk at the reporting 
date and formed our own 
judgement.  
 
We tested data used in the 
ECL calculation by 
reconciling to source 
systems to check data 
quality.  
 
We assessed the 
reasonableness of forward-
looking information 
incorporated into the 
impairment calculations by 
challenging the multiple 
economic scenarios chosen 
and the weighting applied 



to capture non-linear losses.

Key audit matter 

 
We have focused on the following significant judgements and 
estimates which could give rise to material misstatement or 
management bias:  
 
- Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) focusing on both the 
qualitative and quantitative criteria used by the Bank  
 
- Definition of default and credit impaired assets focusing on 
both the qualitative and quantitative criteria used by the Bank  
 
- Probability of Default - PD - (estimate of the likelihood that 
borrowers will be unable to meet their debt obligations over a 
particular time horizon) 
  
- Exposure At Default - EAD - (amount expected to be owed 
the Bank at the time of default)  
 
- Loss Given Default - LGD - (percentage exposure at risk that 
is not expected to be recovered in an event of default)  
 
- Forward looking economic information and scenarios used in 
the models  
 
- Completeness, accuracy and integrity of data used in the 
model and the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations.  

  
  

 

 
 
 

How the matter was 
addressed in our audit. 

We assessed the measurement 
decisions and the ECL models 
developed by the Bank which 
include challenging 
management’s determination 
of: 
-significant increase in 
credit risk,  
-definition and 
identification of default,  
- probability of default,  
- exposure at default, and 
- loss given default.  
 
 
We re-performed certain 
model calculations to 
evaluate the inputs and risk 
parameter outputs.  
 
We considered post-model 
adjustments in the context 
of key model and data 
limitations identified by 
management, challenged 
their rationale and 
recalculated where 
necessary.  
 
We tested the underlying 
disclosures on IFRS 9 and 
compared these to 
underlying accounting 
records.

Other Information 

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The other information comprises notice and 
agenda for the Annual General Meeting, Corporate information, chairman’s report. Other information 
does not include financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 



responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements  

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2019 (Act 992) and the Banks and Specialised Deposit–Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930), and for 
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either in tend to liquidate the Bank or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with the governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from  material  misstatement ,  whether  due to fraud  or  error,  and  to  issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher  than  for one resulting  from  error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Bank’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by directors.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a  
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 



conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.  

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the bank to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the bank audit. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and have communicated with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and 
report on the following matters. We confirm that: 

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;  
ii) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our 
examination of those books; and  
iii) the Bank’s statement of financial position and Bank’s statement of comprehensive income 
are in agreement with the books of account.  
 
In accordance with section 85(2) of the Banks and Specialized Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 
2016 (Act 930) we hereby confirm that:  
 
i) the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and the results of 
operations for the period under review;  



ii) we were able to obtain all the information and explanations required for the efficient 
performance of our duties as auditor;  

iii) the Bank’s transactions were within its powers; and  
iv) the Bank has, in all material respects, complied with the provisions of this Act.  
 

With respect to the provisions of the Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2008 (Act 749) (as amended), 
the Anti-Terrorism Act, 2008, (Act 762) and the Regulations made under these enactments, we 
did not identify any instances of non-compliance based on procedures we performed. 

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept, and the statements of financial position 
and comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account. 

The Bank’s transactions were within its powers and the Bank generally complied with the 
relevant provisions of the Banks and Specialised Deposit- Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 
930).  

The Bank has generally complied with the provisions of the Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2008 
(Act 749), as amended by Anti-Money Laundering Amendments Act, 2014 (Act 874), the Anti-
Terrorism Act, 2008 (Act 762) and the Regulations made under these enactments. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is: Nana 
Forkuoh-Ababioh Yentumi (ICAG/1154). 

 

For and on behalf of John Allotey & Associates  
(ICAG/F/2021/161) 
Chartered Accountants 
Prudential Plaza 
Adum Kumasi, Ghana 
Date: 12th April, 2021. 
 



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

NOTES 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Interest Income 4 14,930,748       12,677,312       

Interest Expense 5 (3,052,265)        (2,521,717)        

Net Interest Income 11,878,483       10,155,595       

Commission and Fees 6 1,646,536         2,048,112         

Other Operating Income 7 259,277            641,697            

Total Income 13,784,296    12,845,404    

Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 8 (300,719)           (275,208)           

Personnel Expenses 9 (7,636,751)        (7,329,615)        

Depreciation & Amortisation 19 (792,347)           (609,901)           

Operating Expenses 10 (4,704,787)        (4,233,710)        

Profit Before Taxation 349,692          396,970         

Income Tax Expense 11 (92,355)             (239,974)           

Total Comprehensive income
for the year 257,337          156,996         

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (GH¢) 13 0.006              0.004              
Diluted earnings per share (GH¢) 13 0.006              0.004              



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2020

NOTES 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 14 12,070,724 9,380,074
Non-Pledged Trading Assets 15 76,325,908 44,773,857
Loans & Advances to customers 16 26,269,330 25,687,944
Investment Securities 17 41,404 41,404
Current Tax Asset 11b 120,492               39,601
Other Assets 18 2,720,014 1,999,733
Property,Plant & Equipment 19 5,567,928 6,130,406
Intangibles Assets 20 655,596 616,860
Total Assets 123,771,396 88,669,879

Liabilities

Creditors and Accruals 21 4,347,914 3,023,853
Deposits from Customers 22 110,665,513 76,683,117
Borrowings 23 6,270 16,533
Deferred Tax Liability 12 108,939               185,695
Pension Fund 24 43,620                 107,019
Other Liabilities 25 & 26 496,789 655,423
Total Liabilities 115,669,045 80,671,640

Equity and Reserves

Stated Capital 27 3,884,145 3,845,169
Retained Earnings 28 1,911,682 1,824,545
Statutory Reserve Fund 29 2,228,108 2,163,774
Capital Surplus 30 39,404 39,404
Credit Risk Reserve 39,012 125,347
Total Equity 8,102,351 7,998,239

Total Liabilities, Equity and Reserves 123,771,396 88,669,879

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd April, 2021 and signed 
on its behalf by:

.…………….............................… .…………….............................…
P.E.K Antwi, ESQ Benjamin Osei-Boateng
(Chairman) (Vice Chairman)



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

STATED RETAINED STATUTORY CAPITAL CREDIT RISK
2020 CAPITAL EARNINGS RESERVE FUND SURPLUS RESERVES TOTAL

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

At 1 January, 2020 3,845,169            1,824,545        2,163,774           39,404          125,347         7,998,239    
Profit for the year -                      257,337           -                      -                -                 257,337       
Dividend Paid -                      (76,399)            -                      -                -                 (76,399)        
Issue of Additional shares 38,976                 -                   -                      -                -                 38,976         
Transfer to Statutory Reserve -                      (64,334)            64,334                -                -                 -                
Tranfer to Credit Risk Reverve 86,335             (86,335)          
Transfer to Dev't Fund -                      (38,601)            -                      -                -                 (38,601)        
Transfer to Other Funds (38,601)            (38,601)        
Transfer to Pension Fund -                      (38,601)            -                      -                -                 (38,601)        
At 31 December, 2020 3,884,145         1,911,682     2,228,108        39,404        39,012         8,102,351    

STATED RETAINED STATUTORY CAPITAL CREDIT RISK

2019 CAPITAL EARNINGS RESERVE FUND SURPLUS RESERVES TOTAL
GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

At 1 January, 2019 3,632,050            2,601,863        2,124,524           39,404          -                 8,397,841    
Profit for the year -                      156,996           -                      -                -                 156,996       
Dividend Paid -                      (699,069)          -                      -                -                 (699,069)     
Issue of additional shares 213,119               -                   -                      -                -                 213,119       
Transfer to Statutory Reserve -                      (39,250)            39,250                -                -                 -                
Tranfer to credit risk reverve (125,347)          125,347         
Transfer to Dev't Fund -                      (23,549)            -                      -                -                 (23,549)        
Transfer to Other Funds (23,549)            (23,549)        
Transfer to Pension Fund -                      (23,549)            -                      -                -                 (23,549)        
At 31 December, 2019 3,845,169         1,824,545     2,163,774        39,404        125,347      7,998,239    



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Profit before Tax 349,692            396,970
Depreciation & Amortisation 792,347            609,901
Transfer from Intangible Assets 397,685            (636,948)          
Fund Utilised (337,836)           (113,306)
Cash Flows from Operating activities before
changes in operating Assets & Liabilities 1,201,888 256,617

Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
Change in Loans and Advances to Customers (581,386) (2,560,416)
Change in Other Assets (720,281) 164,498
Change in Deposits from Customers 33,982,396 12,921,827
Change in Creditors & Accruals 1,324,061 82,323
Cash generated from operating activities 35,206,678 10,864,850
Income Tax Paid (250,000) (146,500)
Net Cash generated from operating Activities 34,956,678 10,718,350

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment (153,424) (216,525)
Purchase of Treasury Bills and Other Eligible Bills (31,552,051) (7,050,554)
Purchase of Intangible Assets (512,866)           -                   

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (32,218,341) (7,267,079)

Cash flows from financing Activities
Dividend Paid (76,399) (699,069)
Additional Shares Issued 38,976 213,119
Borrowings (10,263) (61,668)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (47,686) (547,618)

Net (decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,690,650 2,903,652

Cash and Cash Equivalent at beginning of Year 9,380,074 6,476,422

Cash and Cash Equivalent at end of the year 12,070,724 9,380,074



BOSOMTWE RURAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

1.0 REPORTING ENTITY

Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited is a public Limited Liability Company
incorporated and domiciled in Ghana.The Registered office is located at Kuntananse, 
Ashanti Region. The Bank primarily is involved in rural banking.

2.0 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for 
land and buildings and available-for-sale financial assets that have been measured 
at fair value.

2.2 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) and accounting requirements as dictated by the guide for financial publication 2017 issued
by the Bank of Ghana and in a manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992)  and the 
Banks and Specialised Deposits - Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). 

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency



The financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedis (GH¢) which is the bank's 
functional and presentation currency.

3.3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Bank and which have been applied
in preparing these financial statements are stated below:

3.3.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria apply in revenue recognition.

3.3.2 Interest Income

Under both IFRS 9, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, financial instruments designated at FVPL. 
Interest income on interest bearing financial assets measured at FVOCI under IFRS 9, similarly to interest
bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale or held to maturity under IAS 39 are also
recorded by using the EIR method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate ,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than 
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset in the statement of financial position with an increase or reduction in interest
income The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest and similar income in the
statement of comprehensive income.



3.3.3 Interest and similar income
The Bank calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial 
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the 
Bank calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the 
Bank reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at 
FVPL is recognised using the contractual interest rate in net trading income.

3.3.4 Fees and commissions
Fees and commission income and expenses that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate on financial instruments are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees,  management 
fees, sales commission, placement and arrangement fees and cheque clearing fees are recognised 
as the related services are performed.

Other fees and commission expense relates mainly to transaction and service fees, which are 
expensed as the services are received.

3.3.5 Other Operating Income
This is made up of other operating income including profit or loss on sale of property, plant and
equipment, Bad debt recovered and other miscellaneous incomes.

3.3.6 Interest Expense
Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial instruments measured at
amortized cost, including loans and advances, as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method.

The  effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
the interest expense.



The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments over the
expected life of the instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
liability.

The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial liability, estimating the future
cash flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument. The calculation includes fees paid by the
Bank that are an integral part of the the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial instrument .

3.3.7 Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised 
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income (OCI) or equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or equity.

3.3.8 Current Taxation
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The Bank provides for income taxes
at the current tax rates on the taxable profits of the Bank.

3.3.9 Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 



tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or the tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position method, providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition 
of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.

3.4 Financial assets and liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument or regular way purchases and sales of financial assets 
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Bank becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument or commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss 
allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and investments
in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results in an accounting loss being recognised 
in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial 
recognition, the entity recognises the difference as follows:



(a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical 
asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data 
from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(b) In all other cases, the differences is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred 
day one profit or loss is determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the
instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market 
observable inputs, or realised through settlement.

3.4.1 Classification and subsequent measurement

From 1 January 2018, the Bank has applied IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:
· Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);
· Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
· Amortised cost.
The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:

3.4.2 Debt instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from 
the issuer's perspective, such as loans and investment securities.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:
• the Bank's business model for managing the asset; and
• the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following 
three measurement categories:

cash flows represents solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI'), and that are not 
designated at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets 
is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in 'Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.



for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in ‘other operating income'. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in 'Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.

FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment 
that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging 
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in the profit or loss statement within
‘Net trading income' in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in 'Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.

The above classifications are done using:

generate cash flows. That is, whether the Bank's objective is solely to collect the contractual 
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows 
arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held 
for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of 'other' business model 
and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for 
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, 
how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how 
risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated. Securities held for 
trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the 'other' business
model and measured at FVPL.

collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments' 
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the `SPPI test'). In making 



this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with 
a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of 
money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a 
basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or 
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for 
managing those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first 
reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and 
none occurred during the period.

3.4.3 Equity instruments
Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's 
perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that 
evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net assets. Examples of equity instruments include 
basic ordinary shares.
The Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, 
except where the Bank's management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably 
designate an equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Bank's 
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for 
purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value 
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, 
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such 
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Bank's 
right to receive payments is established.

3.4.4  Impairment
The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses ('ECL') associated 
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposure 
arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Bank recognises a loss 
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:
• An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of 
possible outcomes;



• The time value of money; and
• Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the 
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

3.4.5 Modification of loans
The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to 
customers. When this happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are 
substantially different to the original terms. The Bank does this by considering, among others, 
the following factors:
• If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the 
contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay
• Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
• Significant change in the interest rate.

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original financial asset and 
recognises a 'new' asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. 
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for 
impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a 
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Bank also assesses whether the 
new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially 
in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the 
originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit 
or loss as a gain or loss on de-recognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in 
de-recognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised 
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. 
The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the 
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or 
originated credit-impaired financial assets).

3.4.6  De-recognition other than on a modification
Financial assets
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 



transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset 
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of 
(i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and 
(ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. 
Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained 
by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

3.4.7  Identification and measurement of impairment
At each reporting date, the Bank assessed whether there was objective evidence that financial assets 
not carried at fair value through profit or loss were impaired. A financial asset was impaired when 
objective evidence demonstrated that a loss event had occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset(s) and that the loss event had an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that could be 
estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets were impaired included:
� significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
� default or delinquency by a borrower;
� the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise;
� indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy;
� the disappearance of an active market for a security; or
� observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of 
borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

The Bank considered evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and a collective level. All individually significant loans 
and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities were assessed for specific impairment. 
Those found not to be specifically impaired were then collectively assessed for any impairment that 
had been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment 
securities that were not individually significant were collectively assessed for impairment by grouping 
together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Bank used statistical modelling of historical trends of the 



probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and made an 
adjustment if current economic and credit conditions were such that the actual losses were likely to be
greater or lesser than was suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected 
timing of future recoveries were regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they
remained appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost were calculated as the difference between 
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate.

If the terms of a financial asset were renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset was 
replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment was made 
of whether the financial asset should be derecognised. If the cash flows of the renegotiated asset 
were substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial 
asset were deemed to have expired. In such case, the original financial asset was derecognised and 
the new financial asset was recognised at fair value.

The impairment loss before an expected restructuring was measured as follows.
� If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the estimated 
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset were included in the measurement of the existing 
asset based on their expected timing and amounts discounted at the original effective interest rate of the 
existing financial asset.
� If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair 
value of the new asset was treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of 
its derecognition. This amount was discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting 
date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Impairment losses were recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans 
and receivables or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets continued to 
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognised caused the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss 
was reversed through profit or loss.

The Bank wrote off a loan or an investment in debt security, either partially or in full, and any related 
allowance for impairment losses, when the Bank's Credit Committee determined that there was no



realistic prospect of recovery and approval for write-off granted by the Board of Directors and the 
Central Bank.

3.4.8 Assets carried at amortised cost
For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that 
had not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the asset was reduced and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan 
or held-to-maturity investment had a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss was the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical 
expedient, the Bank could measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreased and the decrease could be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement 
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss.

3.4.9 (e) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The derecognition policies for financial assets and liabilities have not changed on the adoption of IFRS 9.

3.5 Financial Liabilities
i) Classification
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as 
measured at amortised cost.

ii) Measurement
The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation 
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the 
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

iii) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 



different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

3.6  Fair value measurement
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, 
the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take 
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in 
pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the 
transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines 
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced 
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially 
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition 
and the transaction price.

Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the 
instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the 
transaction is closed out.
If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank 
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that 
are managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are 
measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer 



a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to 
the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from 
the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.
The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, 
cash and balances with the ARB Apex Bank and amount due from banks and other financial
institutions.

3.8 Loans and advances
Loans and advances’ are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market and that the Bank does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. 
Loans and advances to banks are classified as hold to collect.
Loans and advances to customers include:
� those classified as loans and receivables; and
� finance lease receivables.
Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. Loans and advances 
also include finance lease receivables in which the Bank is the lessor.
When the Bank purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell 
the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or 
stock borrowing), the arrangement is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is 
not recognised in the Bank’s financial statements.

3.9 Investments
Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs and 
subsequently accounted for depending on their classification as hold to collect or hold to sell.

3.9.1 Non pledged and pledged trading assets
The non-pledged trading assets portfolio comprises debt securities purchased with the intent of 



short-term profit taking. The Bank values these securities with reference to quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets.
These securities are designated at fair value, with fair value changes recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.10 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and 
losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading activity.

3.11 Collateral
The Bank obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate. The 
collateral normally takes the form of cash or securities in respect of other credit instruments or a lien 
over the customer’s assets and gives the Bank a claim on these assets for both existing and future 
liabilities. Collateral received in the form of securities is not recorded on the statement of financial
position. Collateral received in the form of cash is recorded on the statement of financial position with a 
corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits received from banks or other counterparties. 
Any interest payable or receivable arising is recorded as interest payable or interest income respectively 
except for funding costs relating to trading activities which are recorded in net trading income.

3.12  Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost 
of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling 
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part 
of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property, Plant and equipment, and it is



recognised in other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank
 and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
part of an item of property,plant and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance leases 
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The estimated annual depreciation rates for the current and corresponding periods are as follows:

Land & Building 2%
Office Equipment 25%
Computer and Accessories 33%
Furniture & Fittings 20%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Plant and Machinery 10%

3.13 Leasehold property
Leasehold property is initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, leasehold property is 
amortised over the lease term of the property. The amortisation is recognised in profit or loss.

3.14 Intangible assets
Computer software
Software acquired by the Bank is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases 
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure 
is expensed as incurred.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. Amortisation is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is 



available for use. The estimated useful life of software is five years. Amortisation methods, useful 
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset that generates cash flows that are largely independent 
from other assets. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in 
respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group 
of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its 
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting 
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss 
had been recognised.

3.16 Deposits and borrowings
This is mainly made up of customer deposit accounts, other financial institutions and medium term borrowings.
They are categorised as other financial liabilities measured in the statement of financial position at 
amortised cost.

3.17 Provisions
The Bank recognises provisions when it has a present obligation (Legal or Constructive) as a
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the



amount of the obligation. Where the Bank expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the  
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
Profit or Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the Time Value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as Borrowing Cost.

3.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
Short-Term Benefits
a. Short Term Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as s result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

b. Post Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)
Under a National Deferred Benefit Pension Scheme, the bank contributes 13% of employees's basic
salary to the SSNIT for employee pensions. The bank's obligation is limited to the relevant  contributions
which were settled on due dates. The pension liabilities and obligations, however, rest with SSNIT.

Provident Fund
The Bank has a Provident Fund Scheme for all employees who have completed probation with the
Bank.Employees contribute 5% of their basic salary to the Fund whilst the Bank contributes 7.5%.
The obligation under the plan is limited to the relevant contribution and these are settled on due
dates to the fund manager as required by National Pension Regulatory Authority ( NPRA).

3.19 Events after the Reporting Date
Events subsequent to the reporting date are reflected only to the extent that they relate 



to the Financial Statements and the effect is material.

3.20 Dividend

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognized on equity in the period in which they are approved
by the company’s shareholders. Dividend proposed for approval at AGM is not recognized
as a liability as at 31 December, 2020.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31 December, 2020.

3.21 Earnings per share
The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

3.22 RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk in a banking organisation is the possibilty that the outcome of an action or event could
bring up adverse impacts. Such outcomes could either result in a direct loss of earnings/capital
or may result in imposition of constaints on the bank's ability to meet its business objectives. Such
constraints pose a risk as these could hinder a bank's ability to conduct its ongoing business or 
to take benefit of opportunities to enhance its business.

Risk is inherent in every Bank's activities but it is managed through a process of  constant
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.This 
process of risk management is critical to Bosomtwe Rural Bank's continuing profitability and each staff/board
member within the Bank is answerable for the exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.
The key risks the Bank is exposed to are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operating
risks.

a. Risk Management Structure
The Board of Directors have overall oversight responsibility for the Bank's risk management
framework. The Board's Audit Committee gives direction for overall risk monitoring and 
control and it is assisted in its functions by the Internal Audit Department of the Bank. The
Credit Committee , Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) 
responsible for developing and monitoring risks in their specific areas of operation. All these
structures work together to ensure effective implementation of the risk management policies



and procedures of the bank.

b. Risk Measuement and Reporting System
Risk taking is an integral part of banking business. In undertaking its business, Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited has 
to strike an appropriate balance between the level of risk it is willing to take and the level of
returns it desires to achieve. In order to ensure that its risks are well managed within the 
Bank's risk appetite an effective risk management system that is commensurate with the size
and nature of Bosomtwe Rural Bank's operations needs to be in place at all times.

As a means of enhancing corporate governance in the Bank, the risk management framework of 
the bank seeks to enhance its ability to identify and manage risks that it faces in the discharge
of its functions by identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring key risks across all areas of
its operations as well as gathering information on the Bank's risk exposure for management 
decision making.

Bosomtwe Rural Bank Limited has the following types of Risk exposures:
Operational Risk Liquidity Risk Reputational Risk
Market Risk Credit Risk Write-of Policy

These inherent risks are managed through  a process of continuous identification,
measuement, monitoring and controls.The bank continues to intensify measures to minimize
the effects of these risks on its financial perfomance.

c. Operational Risk
‘Operational risk’ is the risk of direct or indirect loss that the Bank will suffer due to an event or action 
resulting from the failure of its internal processes, people and systems, or from external events. Key 
operational risks are managed in a timely and effective manner through a framework of policies, 
procedures and tools to identify, assess, monitor, control and report such risks. The Bank manages its 
operational risk at three distinct levels, each with clearly defined roles and responsibilities as follows:

Business Units and Support Functions
Business Units and Support Functions own and are responsible for understanding the operational risk 
inherent in their material products, activities, processes and systems. They are responsible for the 
consistent implementation of the operational risk management framework in their area of responsibility 
on a day-to day basis. This includes identifying the risks, establishing controls, and managing the risks 



in accordance with the Bank’s overall risk tolerance and operational risk policies.

Operational Risk Management (ORM)
The ORM function has direct responsibility for formulating and implementing the Bank's ORM framework 
including methodologies, policies and procedures approved by the Board. ORM function works with the 
Business Units and Support Functions to ensure that the day-to-day operations of the Bank are in line 
with the approved ORM policies. The unit provides trainings and workshops to facilitate interpretation 
and implementation of the various ORM programs. The unit continuously monitors the effectiveness and 
the quality of the controls and risk mitigation tools.

Internal Audit
The mission of Internal Audit is to provide an independent assurance of the design and effectiveness of 
internal controls over the risks to the Bank’s business performance. In carrying out this function, Internal 
Audit provides specific recommendations for improving the governance, risk & control framework. The 
role of the Internal Audit function is to conduct regular independent evaluation and review of the Bank’s
 policies, procedures and practices in relation to the ORM Policy Framework and report the results 
to the Board.

d. Market Risk
Market risk’ is the risk that changes in market prices – such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates 
and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) – will affect the 
Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Bank’s market 
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters to 
ensure the Bank’s solvency while optimising the return on risk.

The Bank recognizes market risk as the exposure created by potential changes in market prices and 
rates, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates. The Bank’s exposure to market 
risk arises principally from customer driven transactions.

Overall authority for market risk is vested in the ALCO. The Risk Management unit is responsible for 
the development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by ALCO) and 
for the day-to-day review of their implementation.

3.23 Write-off Policy
The Bank writes off a loan when the Credit Committee determines that the loan is non- recoverable.



Upon the recommendation of the Credit Committee, write -offs are referred to the Board and then
to the Bank of Ghana for ratification.

3.24 Reputational Risk
Reputation,though an intangible asset, is considered as one of the prized assets of the Bank. The 
Bank's definition of reputational risk is the risk of loss or under-performance caused by 
deterioration in public perception of (any part) the Bank, arising from adverse publicity or
rumour. This can affect the Bank's ability to establish new relationships or retain existing relationships.
Reputational risk can expose the Bank to financial loss, decline in customer base, litigation and loss of 
business generally. By the nature of its operations, reputational risk management plays a very 
significant role within the bank. The Bank ensures compliance with all legal, statutory & Regulatory
Requirements.

The Business Development and Marketing Department continue to monitor and manage 
reputional risk to the Bank by undertaking customer surveys and reporting to the appropriate
business unit.

Reputational risk is difficult to quantify yet the damage from such reputational risk events can
be devastating. The Bank, therefore, ensures to minimize the negative impact of reputational 
risk exposures on its image, earnings and capital by instituting the following measures:

Strong Financial Stability
Excellent Customer Services
Timely and periodic review of service agreements
Good Corporate Governance and control Practices
Balancing the interest of all significant Stakeholders
Professionalism of Employees
Adherence to Corpotate Social and Enviromental Responsibility.
Adequate annual budgetary allocation for donation and sponsorship.

3.25 Credit Risk
Credit Risk arises from the credit exposure to a borrower or a counter-party, in that either the
borrower or the counter-party is unable to redeem an obligation or the liability to perform 
such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the Bank.



The Credit Risk in the Bank's operations arise from largely, Loans and Advances to Customers.

The Credit Risk is managed through the systems and controls establised by the Credit Department 
which ensures that there is a review of the status of the credit at every stage from application to 
completion of the repayment of the advance by the customer. There is the Credit Committee
which reviews reports of the performance of the Loans and Overdrafts and takes appropriate 
action for recovery. Credit facilities are also closely monitored to uncover early warning
signal or non-performance. The maximum amount of credit risk emanating from these 
sources is as follows:

2020 2019
Ghc Ghc

Loans and Advances to customers 28,007,807        27,206,911     
28,007,807    27,206,911 

The Bank's loans and advances were categorised by the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines as follows:

I. Exposures that are neither past due nor impaired;
II. Exposures that are past due but not impaired; and
III. Individually impaired facilities

2020 2019
Maximum exposures to  credit risk
Carrying amount 26,269,330    25,687,944 

Grade 1-3: Low - fair risk - Current 26,031,948        25,189,224     

Grade 4-5: Low - watch list 99,396               249,959          
Grade 6: Substandard 234,835             452,832          
Grade 7: Doubtful 364,924             106,187          
Grade 8: Loss 1,276,704          1,208,711       
Total Gross Amount 28,007,807        27,206,913     
Allowance for impairment (1,738,477)        (1,518,967)     
Net Carrying Amount 26,269,330    25,687,944 

Ghc Ghc
a Neither past due nor impaired



Grade 1-3: Low - fair risk 26,031,948        25,189,224     
b Past due but not impaired

Grade 4-5: watch list 99,396               249,959          
c Impaired classified by number of days due

90-180 days 234,835             452,832          
180-360 days 364,924             106,187          
360 day + 1,276,704          1,208,711       

1,876,463       1,767,730    
Individually Impaired
Substandard 234,835             452,832          
Doubtful 364,924             106,187          
Loss 1,276,704          1,208,711       

1,876,463       1,767,730    

Neither past due nor impaired
The quality of credit exposure to customers and other institutions that were neither past due
nor impaired were assessed with reference to the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines adopted by the bank for its
internal grading purposes.
This category is made up as folows:

December
2020 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

Grade:
Current 21,488,169    1,922,241  2,621,537    26,031,948   

December
2019 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

Grade:
Current 20,816,533    1,499,572  2,873,119    25,189,224   

Loans and advances past due but not impaired
Loans and advances graded internally as current and OLEM may be past due but are not considered impaired,
unless other information is available to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans and advances by class to
customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

December
2020 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

Grade:



Past due but not impaired 99,396            -                99,396           
December

2019 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Grade:
Past due but not impaired 112,600          137,359     -                249,959        

Individually impaired loans - Stage 3
The breakdown of the gross of loans and advances individually impaired by class, along with the fair value
of related collateral held by the bank as security, are as follows:

December
2020 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

Grade:
Individually impaired loans 1,729,627       63,379       83,457         1,876,463     

Fair Value of Collateral 220,454          -              220,454        
December

2019 Term Loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Grade:
Individually impaired loans 1,592,521       91,752       83,457         1,767,730     

Fair Value of Collateral 239,244          76,925       -                316,169        

At 31 December 2019, the Bank's loans and Advances were categorised under IFRS 9 as follows:
Stage 1 - At initial recognition - Performing
Stage 2 - Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition - Underperforming
Stage 3 - Credit Impaired - Non-performimg

2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Cash & Cash equivalents 2,770,976 -               -                 2,770,976
Investment Securities 76,325,908 -               -                 76,325,908
Investment other than Securities 41,404 -               -                 41,404
Loans & Advances to Cust. 26,031,948        99,396          1,876,463       28,007,807
Other assets ( less Prepayments) 2,658,078 -               -                 2,658,078
Gross carrying amount 107,828,313 99,396 1,876,463 109,804,172



Loss allowances (80,700)             (1,768)          (1,656,009)     (1,738,477)       
Carrying amount 107,747,613 97,629 220,454 108,065,695

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Cash & Cash equivalents 9,380,074 -               -                 9,380,074
Investment Securities 44,773,857 -               -                 44,773,857
Investment other than Securities 41,404 -               -                 41,404
Loans & Advances to Cust. 25,189,224        249,958        1,767,729       27,206,912
Other assets ( less Prepayments) 1,999,733 -               -                 1,999,733
Gross carrying amount 81,384,292 249,958 1,767,729 83,401,980
Loss allowances (60,582)             (6,825)          (1,451,560)     (1,518,967)       
Carrying amount 81,323,710 243,133 316,169 81,883,013

Collaterals and other credit enhancements
The bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the 
taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The bank implements guidelines on the 
acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:
I. Mortgages over residential properties.
II. Charges over business / personal assets such as premises, Vehicle.
III. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances depends on the nature of the
instrument. Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities or individuals are generally secured;revolving 
individual credit facilities are generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimise the credit loss, the bank will seek additional
collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicator are identified for the relevant loans and advances

The Bank's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and
there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Bank since the prior year.

The Bank closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more
likely that the Bank will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. 

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk on loans
and advances is shown below.



Loans and advances to customers
2020 2019

Carrying amount
Concentration by product:
Term loans 23,317,193 22,521,653     
Overdraft 1,985,621          1,728,685       
Staff loans 2,704,993          2,956,576       
Gross loans and advances 28,007,807    27,206,913 
Less: Impairment (1,738,477)        (1,518,967)     
Net loans and advances 26,269,330    25,687,944 

Concentration by industry:
Agricultural 278,942             195,276          
Microfinance 3,042,614          2,016,004       
Trading 2,519,458          2,181,286       
Transport 71,962               70,471            
Salary 22,056,746        22,727,577     
Funeral & Others 38,084               16,297            
Gross loans and advances 28,007,807    27,206,911 
Less: Impairment (1,738,477)        (1,518,967)     
Net loans and advances 26,269,330    25,687,944 

Key ratios on loans and advances
i.  Loan loss provision is 6.21% (2019 : 5.58%)
ii. Gross non-performing loans and advances is 6.70% (2019 ; 6.50%)

3.26 Liquidity Risk
‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset when they fall due.

The Bank's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal or stressed conditions,without
incurring unacceptable losses of risking damage to its reputation.

The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) manages a portfolio of short term liquid assets



and other interbank facilities and ensures that liquidity is maintained within the Bank. The
work of the ALCO is supported by the Treasury Unit which ensures that the Bank has adequate 
liquidity at all times for its operations and to satisfy both statutory and prudential requirements.

ALCO further maintains a prudent investment mix to ensure that there is adequate maturing 
funds available to meet any unexpected withdrawals from the Bank. Daily liquidity report is
also submitted to Management for decision making.

3.27 CAPITAL
a. The Objectives of Capital Management

The Capital Management Objective of the Bank is to ensure that the financial net assets at the 
end of the financial year exceeds the financial amount of the net assets at the beginning of the 
year after deducting distributions and adding contributions from the owners.

This objective will be to ensure that, at anytime, the Stated Capital requirement by Bank of 
Ghana would be met and also to comply with the Capital Adequacy Ratio Regulatory requirements 
of Bank of Ghana. This will be achieved by maintaining an appreciable level of profits to meet
these expected Capital increases by Bank of Ghana.

b. Regulatory capital
The Bank’s regulator, the Bank of Ghana sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as a whole. In
implementing current capital requirements, the Bank of Ghana requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed ratio of
total capital to total risk-weighted assets.

The Bank’s regulatory capital is analysed as follows:
Tier 1 capital, also referred to as core/primary capital is made up of equity and disclosed reserves. Equity
includes issued and fully paid ordinary share capital and perpetual non-cumulative preference shares.
Disclosed reserves relate to those created or increased by appropriation of after tax retained
earnings/surplus, retained profits and general statutory reserves and does not include regulatory credit risk
reserve.

c. The Level of Capital Adequacy
2020 2019
Ghc Ghc

Paid Capital 3,884,133          3,845,156       



Disclosed Reserves 5,297,846          4,027,723       
Permanent Preference Shares 13                      13                   
Sub-Total 9,181,991          7,872,892       
Investments in other Banks & Fin. Inst. (41,404)             (41,404)          
Tier 1 Capital 9,140,587          7,831,488       
Tier 2 Capital -                    -                 
Regulatory Capital 9,140,587          7,831,488       
Required Regulatory Capital 6,927,579          7,494,626       
Surplus Capital 2,213,008       336,861       

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on 
shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Bank recognises the need to maintain a balance between 
the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded 
by a sound capital position.

The Bank complied with the statutory capital requirements throughout the period. There have been no 
material changes in the Bank’s management of capital during this period.

4 INTEREST INCOME 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Interest on Loans and Overdraft 9,089,194 9,211,084
Interest on Investments 5,841,554 3,447,675
Interest on Call Accounts -                    18,553

14,930,748 12,677,312

5 INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on Deposits 3,052,265 2,521,717
Interest on Borrowing -                    -                 

3,052,265 2,521,717

6 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Commission 830,620 1,166,540



Commitment Fees 815,916 881,572
1,646,536 2,048,112

7 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Grant Income -                    -                 
Cheque Clearing Fees -                    555.25            
Sundry Income 259,277 641,142

259,277 641,697

8 IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Allowance for Impairment - Other Assets 81,209               -                 
Allowance for Impairment - Loan & Advance 219,510             275,208          

300,719          275,208       

9 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries , Wages 4,363,151 4,250,563
Other Staff Cost 175,331 229,063
Provident Fund 303,051 294,117
Social Security Contribution 565,564 551,325
Staff Training Cost 63,803 45,007
Allowances 270,074 275,191
Susu Commission Paid 1,412,209 1,196,722
Staff Clothing Allowance 483,568 487,627

7,636,751 7,329,615
The number of persons employed by the Bank at the end of the year was 242 (2019:244 ).

10 OPERATING EXPENSES

Director's Emoluments 188,830 226,520
Occupancy Cost 189,150 178,191
Auditor's Remuneration 41,438               30,000
Other Expenses 4,285,369 3,798,999



4,704,787 4,233,710

11 (a) INCOME TAX EXPENSES 2020 2019
GH₵ GH₵

Current Income Tax 169,110 257,987
Deferred Income Tax (76,755) (18,013)

92,355 239,974

Deferred tax expense relates to the origination and reversals of temporary differences.

(b) CURRENT TAXATION
Balance at Payment During Charge to P /L Over /(Under) Balance at

Year of Assessment 01/01/2020 The Year  Provision 31/12 2020
GH₵ GH₵ GH₵ GH₵ GH₵

2020 (39,601)             (250,000)      169,110          -                   (120,491)
(39,601) (250,000) 169,110 -                 (120,491)

All tax liabilities are subject to the agreement with the Ghana Revenue Authority.

(c) RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Profit before tax 349,692
Income tax using the domestic tax rate 87,423
Tax impact on Non - deduction expenses 291,060
Tax impact of capital allowances (209,373)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax credit -               
Deferred tax (76,755)
Current tax charges 92,355

Effective tax rate (%) 26%

12 (a) DEFERRED TAXATION

01/01/2020 Movement 31/12/20
Charge / (Credit) to Income Statement
Historical Cost- NCA & Intangibles 565,437             (21,878)        543,559          
Loan Impairment (379,742)           (54,877)        (434,619)        



185,695          (76,755)      108,940       

(b) RECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following :

Temporary Tax Deferred 
Difference Rate Tax

GH₵ GH₵ GH₵
Deferred Tax Asset - Loan Impairment (1,738,477)        25% (434,619)        
Deferred Tax Liability - NCA & Intangibles 2,174,236          25% 543,559          
Net deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities 435,759          108,940       

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2020 was based on the profit 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of GH¢257,337 (2019: GH¢156,994) and a weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding of 40,168,392 (2019: 39,973,512) calculated as follows:

Net profit for the year attributable        
 to equity holders of the Bank 257,337          156,996

Weighted average number of ordinary shares      4,000,00040,168,392    39,973,512

Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.006               0.004            

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Cash in Vault 2,748,906 1,855,706
APEX - 5% Deposit Account 5,022,020 3,739,523
APEX Clearing Account 3,436,060 2,200,079
ACOD - ARB Apex Bank Limited 500,000             1,000,000
E-Cash (MMM) 22,070 298,633
other banks 341,668 286,134

12,070,724 9,380,074
15 NON-PLEDGED TRADING ASSETS



G.O.G Treasury Bills held by:
ARB Apex Bank Limited 220,000 220,000

220,000 220,000
Placement on Call Accounts:
Gold Coast Securities Ltd 10,720,000        10,720,000     
Security Discount Company Ltd 14,500,000        8,500,000       
Prestige Capital Ltd 9,600,000          9,600,000       
Ideal Finance -                    1,000,000       
CBG 1,001,000          -                 
Accrued Income 5,030,105          4,453,857       
Apex 3,280,000          3,280,000       
Cal Bank 9,074,795          1,000,000       
Zenith Bank 6,500,000          6,000,000       
Ecobank 16,400,008        

76,105,908    44,553,857 

TOTAL 76,325,908    44,773,857 

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES

(a) Analysis By Type of Customer
Loans 26,022,186 25,478,228
Overdraft 1,985,621 1,728,683

28,007,807 27,206,911
Less: Credit Impairment Loss (1,738,477) (1,518,967)

26,269,330 25,687,944

(b) Analysis By Type of Business Segment
Agriculture 278,942 195,276
Salaried Workers 21,305,718 19,669,259
Transport 71,962 70,471
Trading 2,519,458 2,181,286
Microfinance 3,042,614 2,016,004
Staff and Directors 751,028             3,058,318



Others 38,084 16,297
28,007,807 27,206,911

Less: Credit Impairment Loss (1,738,477) (1,518,967)
26,269,330 25,687,944

(C) Impairment Allowance for Loans & Advances

Balance at 1 January 1,518,967 1,243,759
Loan impairment charge 219,510             275,208
Balance at 31 December 1,738,477 1,518,967

Bank of Ghana Provisions

Balance at 1 January 1,644,314          1,079,215       
Provision Made 133,175             565,099          
Balance at 31 December 1,777,489       1,644,314    

Loan provisioning/impairment are carried out in accordance with Bank of Ghana
Policy as well as the principles of IFRS 9. Loan impairment losses calculated based on
IFRS principles are passed through the statement of comprehensive income. Where
provisions per IFRS 9 is more than the provisions per Bank of Ghana guidelines, no
regulatory credit reserve is required.
When the credit loss provision calculated under IFRS 9 principles is less than that of
Bank of Ghana, transfers are made from the income surplus account into the non-
distributable regulatory credit reserves.

Provisions per Bank of Ghana Guidelines 1,777,489          1,644,314       
Provisions per IFRS (1,738,477)        (1,518,967)     
Regulatory Credit Reserve 39,012            125,347       

17 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
ARB Apex Bank Limited - Ordinary Shares 41,404 41,404

41,404 41,404
This represents investment in the ordinary shares of ARB Apex bank limited 



18 OTHER ASSETS ACCOUNT

Stationery Stock 357,184 368,132
Insurance Prepaid 61,936 58,214
Office Account 554,618 204,068
Inter Branch Account -                    28,807
Others/Ezwich 49,715 488,234
Interest & Commission Accrued 452,586 4,750
Interest in Arrears 1,243,975          847,529

2,720,014 1,999,733



19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
COST Right of use Computers Fur., fittings Impro. To Rented

Land & Building assets & Access. & equips Motor Veh. Plant & Mach. Land Container Premises Total
GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1/1/2020 2,950,878 672,948         775,683 1,617,491 1,070,503 207,069 310,776 49,050 1,347,220 9,001,618
Additions 14,405              12,000 34,590 78,024 -             -             -             -             14,405         153,424     
Transfer 50,317              -                 -                 -                -             -             (225,519)    -             175,202       -             
Balance at 31/12/2020 3,015,600 684,948 810,273 1,695,515 1,070,503 207,069 85,257 49,050 1,536,827 9,155,042

DEPRECIATION
Balance at 1/1/2020 341,482 77,654           474,347 1,105,733 435,538 155,547 -             43,249 237,662 2,871,212
Charge for the year 49,225 91,146 79,723 153,215 163,021 15,060       -                    5,801         158,712       715,902     
Balance at 31/12/2020 390,707 168,800 554,070 1,258,948 598,559 170,607 -           49,050 396,374 3,587,114

CARRYING AMOUNT
AT 31 DECEMBER, 2020 2,624,893 516,148 256,203 436,567 471,944 36,462 85,257 -           1,140,453 5,567,928

Right of use Computers Fur., fittings Impro. To Rented
b COST Land & Building assets & Access. & equips Motor Veh. Plant & Mach. Land Container Premises Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢
Balance at 1/1/2019 2,992,303 -                 749,043 1,521,843 1,070,503 207,069 310,776 49,050 1,288,448 8,189,035
Transfer:
From other assets to ROUA -                   636,948         -                 -                -             -             -             -             -               636,948

2,992,303 636,948 749,043 1,521,843 1,070,503 207,069 310,776 49,050 1,288,448 8,825,983
Additions 8,892 36,000 26,640 95,648 -             -             -             -             8,455 175,635
Transfer (50,317) -                 -                 -                -             -             -             -             50,317 -             
Balance at 31/12/2019 2,950,878 672,948 775,683 1,617,491 1,070,503 207,069 310,776 49,050 1,347,220 9,001,618

DEPRECIATION
Balance at 1/1/2019 297,359 -                 427,796 958,936 308,642 140,487 -             35,023 112,476.00  2,280,719
Charge for the year 44,123 77,654           46,551 146,797 126,896 15,060 -             8,226 125,186 590,493
Balance at 31/12/2019 341,482 77,654         474,347 1,105,733 435,538 155,547 -           43,249 237,662 2,871,212

CARRYING AMOUNT
AT 31 DECEMBER, 2019 2,609,396 595,294 301,336 511,758 634,965 51,522 310,776 5,801 1,109,558 6,130,406



20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS PURCHASED SOFTWARE
2020 2019

COST GH¢ GH¢
Balance at 1 January 2020 643,530            602,640          
Acquisitions 512,866            40,890            
Transfer (397,685)           -                            
Balance at 31 December 2020 758,711          643,530        

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
Balance at 1 January 2020 26,670            7,261              
Amortisation for the year 76,445              19,409            
Transfer (39,362)             -                  
Balance at 31 December 2020 103,115          26,670          

NET BOOK VALUE
AT 31 DECEMBER,2020 655,596          616,860        
The amortization periods and key factors considered in determining the useful life are the same as disclosed in note 3.14 above.

21 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Office Accounts (CR) 834,083                  440,488          
Bills Payable 291,998                  411,570          
Unearned Interest on Customers Deposits 735,079                  151,096          
Audit Fees 41,438                    30,000            
Loan Protection 510,634                  423,119          
Interest in arrears suspense 1,243,975               847,529          
Interagency 21,771                    -                 
Others / Ezwich 225,478                  -                 
Uncleared Effects 66,558                    720,051          
Tax Audit Liability(GRA) 71,174                    -                 
T 24 License Fee Payable 305,726                  -                 

4,347,914            3,023,853    



22 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Savings Accounts 45,426,902             32,943,445     
Current Account 17,006,902             12,131,756     
Time Deposits 20,694,200             15,385,897     
Susu Deposits 25,990,083             14,787,720     
Others 1,547,426               1,434,299       

110,665,513        76,683,117 

23 BORROWINGS

Special Farmers Loans (MOWAC) 6,270                      6,270              
ARB Apex Bank Limited -                          10,263            

6,270                    16,533         

24 PENSION FUND
This represents 15% of the profit for the year and it is to cater for staff and Directors who retire from active service.

2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 107,019 3,478              
Add:Transfer from Profit 38,601                    23,549            
Less: Utilised (102,000) 79,992            
Balance as at 31 December 43,620 107,019

25 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
This Fund is to support development activities in the communities that the bank operates and it represents
15% of the profit for the year.

Balance at 1 January 488,220 482,965          
Add:Transfer from Profit 38,601                    23,549            
Less: Utilised (70,600) (18,294)          
Balance as at 31 December 456,221 488,220

26 ICT FUND



This represents 15% of the profit for the year and it is to cater for Information Technological needs of the bank.

Balance at 1 January 167,203 318,659          
Add:Transfer from Profit 38,601                    23,549            
Less: Utilised (165,236) (175,005)        
Balance as at 31 December 40,568 167,203

27 STATED CAPITAL No. of Shares No.of Shares Proceeds Proceeds

2020 2019 2020 2019
GH¢ GH¢

Authorised: 50,000,000 50,000,000    

Issued Shares:
Preference Shares 125,000                  125,000            12.50 12.50              
Ordinary Shares 40,168,392             39,973,512 3,884,133 3,845,156
Issued for cash 40,293,392 40,098,512 3,884,145 3,845,169    

All ordinary shares rank equal with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to 
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Bank.

Stated capital and reserves
Stated Capital
The Bank classifies capital and equity instruments in accordance with the contractual terms of the instrument.
Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders. Dividend
proposed which is yet to be approved by shareholders, is disclosed by way of notes.

28 RETAINED EARNINGS
This represents the residual of cumulative annual profits that are available for distribution to shareholders

29 STATUTORY RESERVES

Statutory reserves are based on the reqiurements of section 34 of the Banks and Specialised Deposits-



Taking Institutions Act (ACT 930). Transfers into Statutory Reserves are made in accordance with the
relationship between the Bank's Reserve fund and its paid up capital, which determines the proportion of 
profit for the period that should be transferred.
(i) Where the reserve fund is less than fifty percent of the stated capital, an amount not less 
than 50% of net profit for the year is transferred to the reserve fund.
(ii) Where the reserve fund is more than 50% but less than 100% of the stated capital, an 
amount not less than 25% of net profit is transferred to the reserve fund.
(iii) Where the reserve is equal to 100% of the Stated Capital, an amount not less than 12.5% 
of the net profit for the year is transferred to the reserve fund.

30 CAPITAL SURPLUS
This represents marked to market unrealised gains/loss on investment securities available for sale.

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Advances due from Directors and Staff of the bank amounted to GHS 2,836,229 ;(2019 - GHS 3,058,318 )
Details are as follows: 2020 2019

GH¢ GH¢
Directors and Related Interest 131,236                  101,743          
Officers and Employees 2,704,993               2,956,575       

2,836,229            3,058,318    


